
Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for September 16, 2013 

 

  - 1 - 

 
Call to Order:  6:00 pm by Chairperson Stults 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll Call: 

 

Present:  Chairperson Stults, Vice-Chairperson Arndt, Mr. Hilgendorf, Mr. Brown, Mrs. Jarecki,  

Mr. Hartmann, Ms. Nowak, Mr. Klee, Mr. Mang, Mr. Hendershot  

Absent:  Mr. Borton 

 

Staff Present:  Mr. Schlaud, Ms.Boyak-Wohlfeil 

 

Public Present:  None 

 

Consent Agenda:  None 

 

Approval of minutes from August 19, 2013:  
 

Mr. Mang requested the following changes on the bottom of page one (1)… He had spoken to a member of the 

Jail Advisory Committee and he ‘this member’ felt the work program’s implementation was showing success and 

there was possible room for expansion in the program. He ‘This member’ also said the Criminal Justice Master 

Plan had not been reviewed in several years and was scheduled to be looked at this coming winter by John Burt, 

Otsego County Administrator and members of this committee. Mr. Mang stated he was passing on this 

committee member’s views and suggested the Planning Commission hold off on an urgent recommendation of 

the jail until this ‘review’ occurred. 

 

Chairperson Stults requested the following additions on page three (3) under Reports and Commission 

Member’s Comments-Chairperson Stults stated elections would take place…and he would not be considered 

for candidacy ‘as chairperson.’ and the addition of…The Committee was responsible for the Groen Nature 

Preserve, the Otsego County Park…Irontone Springs along with ‘Libke’ Mystic Fields out by the airport.  

 

Motion made to approve minutes as corrected by Mr. Hartmann; Seconded by Mr. Klee. 

 

Motion approved unanimously. 

 

Other:  None  

 

Public participation for items not on the agenda:  None 

 

Public Hearing:  
 

Highway Interchange District/Article 17/Schedule of Dimensions setback additions 

 

Public Hearing Open:    6:08 pm 

Public Hearing Closed:  6:08 pm 

 

 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for September 16, 2013 

 

  - 2 - 

Advertised Cases: 

 

Highway Interchange District/Article 17/Schedule of Dimensions setback additions 

 

Chairperson Stults read aloud the letter from Corwith Township proposing the same dimensions for the Highway 

Interchange District as required in B1/Local Business and B2/General Business and asked Mrs. Jarecki, Corwith 

representative, their reasons for the recommendations. 

 

Mrs. Jarecki stated Corwith Planning Commission was looking at allowed uses in B1 and B2 and they seemed to 

consistent with permitted uses in HX.   

 

Chairperson Stults agreed there were many of the same permitted uses but there were also heavier types of uses 

allowed in HX/Highway Interchange. 

 

Mrs. Jarecki stated that was what their planning commission questioned, the minimum lot size of 40,000 feet.  

They felt the size was quite large to be imposed on many of the permitted uses. 

  

Mr. Brown stated because industrial was allowed in the HX district, a minimum of 10,000 feet would be too 

small. 

 

Mrs. Jarecki stated 40,000 feet would be very large for a medical or dental office. 

 

Vice-chairperson Arndt stated transit usage needed to be taken into consideration. 

 

Mr. Mang stated the dimension was just a minimum lot size and if a business needed a larger lot size, it was not 

limited. 

 

Ms. Nowak stated the 10,000 feet was a minimum not a maximum lot size and with the smaller dimension, the 

door would be opened for more small businesses. 

 

Chairperson Stults stated this should be considered and the uses in the HX district should be looked at further.  

Some of the uses did come out of the industrial section of the Ordinance.  Since Otsego Lake Township had 

originally proposed the zoning district, he suggested Article 17 be referred back to them for consideration of 

lesser requirements but also to look at individual uses that may need the larger. 

 

Mr. Mang stated certain uses cannot transpire on a 10,000 foot lot, less than a quarter of an acre in size.  There 

are not too many industries that can operate on a quarter of an acre, so rather than legislating the Ordinance too 

much, things may self-regulate just by the nature of the business. 

 

Chairperson Stults asked for consent to refer Article 17/Schedule of Dimensions back to Otsego Lake Township 

with the objectives and concerns of commission members, for their input.  It would then be brought back to the 

County Planning Commission. 

 

Chairperson Stults called a short recess:  6:22 pm. 

 

Chairperson Stults called the meeting back in session:  6:24 pm. 

  

 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for September 16, 2013 

 

  - 3 - 

 

Unfinished Commission Business: 

 

1. Otsego County Capital Improvement Plan 2014-2019/Revised information 

 

Chairperson Stults stated the revisions and updates had been added to the jail section of the Plan.  He 

asked Mr. Hartmann and Mr. Mang, as members of the Capital Improvement Plan Committee, if they 

had anything to add. 

 

Mr. Hartmann stated he felt it reflected what was asked. 

 

Mr. Mang concurred. 

 

Chairperson Stults asked if anyone else had any comments; there were none. 

 

Motion made to recommend the Otsego County Capital Improvement Plan 2014-2019 with revisions to 

the Board of Commissioners by Mr. Hendershot; Seconded by Mr. Hilgendorf. 

 

Motion approved unanimously.  

 

2. Review of ‘Service Roads’ definition 

 

Chairperson Stults recommended sending to Townships the definition of ‘Service Roads’ as an 

addition to Section 20.2/Definitions. 
 

New Business:   
 

1. Otsego County Master Plan Review/Discussion 

 

Chairperson Stults stated it was a requirement to review the Master Plan every five (5) years.  He stated 

the whole Plan could be redone, individual sections could be revised or    If the Plan were to be redone, it 

would have to comply with the current Zoning Enabling Act or we could state the Plan meets our needs 

and it wouldn’t have to be looked at for another five (5) years out. 

 

Mr. Mang stated a review process had to be gone through.  He also stated Livingston Township had 

recently reviewed their master plan and a member of MSU Extension had developed a series of 

questions based on the Zoning Enabling Act, to systematically approach the review.  It was on the MSU 

website and could be printed off.  

 

Chairperson Stults stated when the Master Plan was originally done, they had received grant monies and 

with the multiple consultants involved, it was quite expensive.  Although this may not be a major 

revision, hiring consultants would not be feasible with just the Planning Commission budget.  Without 

other funding, the Plan would go nowhere. 

 

Mr. Hartmann stated Elmira Township had also recently revised their master plan and had updated to the 

2010 census.  They had hired Mary Campbell, who had all that information available, and he felt she was 

quite reasonable. 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for September 16, 2013 

 

  - 4 - 

Chairperson Stults commented that Mary Campbell had also been the consultant for Otsego Lake 

Township’s master plan but the County Master Plan was much more detailed and extensive. 

 

Mr. Mang recommended again, the review process Livingston had used to help them narrow down the 

items that needed to be updated and/or revised.  The review did not cost them anything but it helped 

them identify the specific areas for change.  He stated a professional was not needed to go through the 

review. 

 

Chairperson Stults agreed outside help was not needed for the review.  He also stated that if the Master 

Plan was to be redone opposed to just revising, a complete transportation plan would need to be done 

too, as that was a requirement of the Zoning Enabling Act.  That would include roads, public transit, bike 

paths and so on would be required. 

 

Mr. Mang stated they had included a transportation plan in their master plan and it wasn’t really that 

overly burdensome with all the information that is available. 

 

Chairperson Stults asked Mr. Schlaud to do some research for the guidelines and checklist to help with 

the review. 

 

Mr. Mang said he would email Mr. Schlaud a link to the information. 

 

2. North Star Gardens/New Landscape Business-Special Use Permit 

 

Mr. Schlaud stated he had been approached by North Star Gardens for a Special Use Permit (SUP) and 

had presented a site plan of the proposed project for an upcoming public hearing.   

 

Chairperson Stults stated this was just a preliminary site plan and needed to go to the township first. 

 

Mr. Schlaud stated he also received a Special Use Permit application for an extension on an expired 

mining permit in Chester Township.   

 

Reports and Commission Member’s Comments: 

 

1. Election of officers/2014 

 

Chairperson Stults stated Roberts Rules of Order would be followed and a majority of votes would be 

needed for election to that office.  Six (6) votes is a majority and voting ends when a majority is reached. 

 

Chairperson Stults opened nominations and nominated Mr. Hartmann for office of chairperson. 

Mr. Hendershot nominated Mr. Arndt for office of chairperson. 

Members voted:   Hartmann-5 

   Arndt-5 

 

The Rules state nominations are opened again and voting takes place again. 

 

Chairperson Stults opened nominations and nominated Mr. Hartmann for the office of chairperson. 

Mr. Hendershot nominated Mr. Arndt for the office of chairperson. 

Members voted:  Hartmann-6 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for September 16, 2013 

 

  - 5 - 

Mr. Hartmann elected chairperson. 

 

Mr. Hartmann nominated Mrs. Jarecki for the office of vice-chairperson. 

Mr. Hendershot nominated Mr. Arndt for the office of vice-chairperson. 

Members voted:  Mrs. Jarecki-6 

 

Mrs. Jarecki elected vice-chairperson.  

 

Mr. Hartmann nominated Mr. Stults for the office of secretary  

Members voted:   Mr. Stults-9 

 

Mr. Stults elected secretary. 

 

Chairperson Stults stated the three (3) new officers make up the Executive Committee also and the new 

terms begin October 1, 2013.   

 

2. Expiring terms/Reappointment 

a. Brown/Charlton-12.31.13 

b. Hendershot/Hayes-12.31.13 

c. Stults/Otsego Lake-12.31.13 

 

Members will receive a letter from John Burt, County Administrator, inquiring of their interest in being 

reappointed.  The Board of Commissioners will announce the reappointments at their meeting and it will 

then be posted on the website. 

 

The Planning Commission will need to appoint a representative to the Zoning Board of Appeals around 

the same time as Mr. Stults’ appointment expires with his term. 

 

Planning Commission members each spoke and thanked the officers for their efforts and welcomed the new 

officers to the positions.  

 

Adjournment:  7:27 pm by Chairperson Stults. 

 

 

Christine Boyak-Wohlfeil, Recording Secretary 

 

Ken Borton, Planning Commission Secretary 


